
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

NOTE: Representations on any items on the Agenda must be received in 
writing by 9:00am on the Monday preceding the meeting. 

 

All Planning Committee meetings are audio recorded. 
 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, 
audiotape/CD or in another language upon request. For all enquiries 

please contact julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk   
Tel: 01424 787811 

Rother District Council aspiring to deliver… 
an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council, Sustainable Economic Prosperity, 

Stronger, Safer Communities and a Quality Physical Environment 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Date and Time 

 
- 

 
Thursday 18 June 2020 
9:30am – 1:00pm and 2:00pm until close of business 
(At the discretion of the Chairman, the timing of lunch may be varied) 

 

Venue - Remote Meeting 
 

 
Councillors appointed to the Committee: 
J. Vine-Hall (Chairman), S.M. Prochak (Vice-Chairman), Mrs M.L. Barnes, S.J. 
Coleman, G.C. Curtis, B.J. Drayson (ex-officio), S.J. Errington, A.E. Ganly, K.M. 
Harmer, J.M. Johnson, L.M. Langlands, C.A. Madeley, A.S. Mier, G.F. Stevens 
and R. Thomas. 
 
Substitute Members: J. Barnes, P.C. Courtel, H.J. Norton and H.L. Timpe. 
 

 
AGENDA 

1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 The Head of Paid Service to seek nominations for election of Chairman for 
the municipal year.  On election, Chairman of Committee to take the Chair. 

 

2.   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   

 To elect a Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the municipal year. 
 

3.   MINUTES   

 To authorise the Chairman to sign the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Committee held on the 28 May 2020 as a correct record of the proceedings. 

 

4.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTES   

5.   ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS   

 To consider such other items as the Chairman decides are urgent and due 
notice of which has been given to the Head of Paid Service by 12 noon on 
the day preceding the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk


 
 

NOTE: Representations on any items on the Agenda must be received in writing by 
9:00am on the Monday preceding the meeting. 

 

Enquiries – please ask for Julie Hollands (Tel: 01424 787811) 
For details of the Council, its elected representatives and meetings, visit the Rother District 

Council website www.rother.gov.uk 

6.   WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS   

 The Head of Service Strategy and Planning to advise Members of those 
planning applications on the agenda which have been withdrawn. 

 

7.   DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST   

 To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable pecuniary 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and whether the 
Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the terms of the 
Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat their 
declaration immediately prior to the commencement of the item in question. 

 

8.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS - INDEX  (Pages 1 - 2) 

9.   RR/2019/2758/P - WHATLINGTON - ST. MARY MAGDALEN CHURCH - 
LAND SOUTH WEST OF  (Pages 3 - 18) 

10.   RR/2020/865/P - HURST GREEN - POOKS FARM, LONDON ROAD  
(Pages 19 - 24) 

11.   PLANNING STATISTICS FOR THE QUARTER JANUARY - MARCH 2020 
(INCLUDING SUMMARY OF PLANNING STATISTICS FOR 2020/21)  
(Pages 25 - 28) 

12.   UNDETERMINED MAJOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 29 - 32) 

13.   APPEALS  (Pages 33 - 36) 

 
 

Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 

Agenda Despatch Date: 10 June 2020 
 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
Due to the Government restrictions imposed as a result of COVID-19 pandemic in 
the United Kingdom, certain changes have been made to the arrangements for the 
Planning Committee meetings. 
 
As a temporary measure, the Planning Committee will be meeting remotely and may 
meet more frequently than the usual four weekly cycle.  However, prior notice of any 
additional meetings will be shown on the Council’s website and in the calendar of 
meeting dates.  The meetings will be live streamed via YouTube and viewable by the 
public on the website at the following link 
https://rother.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0 
 

https://rother.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0


 
 

NOTE: Representations on any items on the Agenda must be received in writing by 
9:00am on the Monday preceding the meeting. 

 

Enquiries – please ask for Julie Hollands (Tel: 01424 787811) 
For details of the Council, its elected representatives and meetings, visit the Rother District 

Council website www.rother.gov.uk 

It is possible to still register to speak on planning applications that come to the 
Planning Committee, however our speaking rules have been slightly amended during 
this pandemic, please check the website for further details 
https://www.rother.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-committee/public-
speaking-at-planning-committee/ 
 
 
 

https://www.rother.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-committee/public-speaking-at-planning-committee/
https://www.rother.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-committee/public-speaking-at-planning-committee/


This page is intentionally left blank



pl200618 – Planning Applications - Index 

Rother District Council                                                                      
 

Report to - Planning Committee 
 

Date - 18 June 2020 
 

Report of the - Executive Director 
 

Subject - Planning Applications – Index 
 

 
Head of Service:  Tim Hickling 
 

 
Planning Committee Procedures 
 
Background Papers 
These are planning applications, forms and plans as presented in the agenda,  
pertinent correspondence between the applicant, agents, consultees and other 
representatives in respect of the application, previous planning applications and 
correspondence where relevant, reports to Committee, decision notices and appeal 
decisions which are specifically referred to in the reports.  Planning applications can 
be viewed on the planning website http://www.rother.gov.uk/planning  
 
Planning Committee Reports 
If you are viewing the electronic copy of the Planning Applications report to Planning 
Committee then you can access individual reported applications by clicking on the 
link (View application/correspondence) at the end of each report. 
 
Consultations 
Relevant statutory and non-statutory consultation replies that have been received 
after the report has been printed and before the Committee meeting will normally be 
reported orally in a summary form. 
 
Late Representations 
Unless representations relate to an item which is still subject to further consultation 
(and appears on the agenda as a matter to be delegated subject to the expiry of the 
consultation period) any further representations in respect of planning applications 
on the Planning Committee agenda must be received by the Head of Service 
Strategy and Planning in writing by 9am on the Monday before the meeting at the 
latest. Any representation received after this time cannot be considered. 
 
Subject to the previous reference to delegated items late petitions cannot be 
considered in any circumstance, as petitions will only be accepted prior to publication 
of the agenda in accordance with the guidance on submitting petitions found at 
http://www.rother.gov.uk/speakingatplanningcommittee   
 
Delegated Applications 
In certain circumstances the Planning Committee will indicate that it is only prepared   
to grant/refuse planning permission if/unless certain amendments to a proposal are 
undertaken or the application is subject to the completion of outstanding or further 
consultations.  In these circumstances the Head of Service Strategy and Planning 
can be delegated the authority to issue the decision of the Planning Committee once 
the requirements of the Committee has been satisfactorily complied with.  A 
delegated decision does not mean that planning permission or refusal will 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8

http://www.rother.gov.uk/planning
http://www.planning.rother.gov.uk/WAM/pas/findCaseFile.do?appNumber=rr????????
http://www.rother.gov.uk/speakingatplanningcommittee


pl200618 – Planning Applications - Index 

automatically be issued.  If there are consultation objections, difficulties, or 
negotiations which cannot be satisfactorily concluded, then the application will be 
reported back to the Planning Committee or reported via the (internal electronic) 
Notified D system as a means of providing further information for elected Members.  
This delegation also allows the Head of Service Strategy and Planning to negotiate 
and amend applications, conditions, reasons for refusal and notes commensurate 
with the instructions of the Committee. 
 

Applications requiring the applicant entering into an obligation under section 106 of 
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) are also delegated.   
 

Order of Presentation 
The report on planning applications is presented in the following order as shown 
below: 
 
  

Agenda 
Item 

Reference Parish Site Address 
Page 
No. 

9 RR/2019/2758/P WHATLINGTON 
St. Mary Magdalen 
Church – Land South 
West of 

3 

10 RR/2020/865/P HURST GREEN 
Pooks Farm, London 
Road 

19 

 

Page 2

http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2019/2758/P
http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2020/865/P


pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 9



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

Rother District Council 
 

Report to   -  Planning Committee 

Date    - 18 June 2020  

Report of the  -  Executive Director 

Subject - Application RR/2019/2758/P 

Address - St Mary Magdalen Church - Land South West of, 
Whatlington 

Proposal - Construction of a church car park and erection of a 
detached dwelling 

View application/correspondence  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: It be RESOLVED to REFUSE OUTLINE PLANNING  
 

 
Head of Service: Tim Hickling 
 

 
Applicant:   Mrs P. Butcher 
Agent: DGC Consultants (Miss Deborah Gardner) 
Case Officer: Mr M. Cathcart  (Email: mark.cathcart@rother.gov.uk)  
 
Parish: WHATLINGTON 
Ward Members: Councillors Mrs V. Cook and K.M. Field 
  
Reason for Committee consideration:  Member referral – Councillor Mrs V. 
Cook  
 
Reason: “I would like the Committee to consider the overwhelming benefit to the 
community that allowing outline planning permission for a single dwelling to fund and 
thus enable the building of a car park to serve visitors to the church for Worship, 
Weddings, Funerals and for meetings and concerts. Thus, conserving the heritage of 
a 13th century building for future generations.” 
 
Statutory 8 week date: 5 March 2020 
Extension of time agreed to: 22 May 2020 
 

 
1.0 SUMMMARY  

 
1.1 This application has been referred to Committee from the Notified D list of 

applications. The application seeks planning permission for the construction of 
a car park for the church. It also seeks planning permission for a detached 
dwelling. It is intended that the proceeds from the sale of the new dwelling plot 
with planning permission would finance the construction of the car park.  

 

 
 
 

Page 4

http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2019/2758/P
mailto:mark.cathcart@rother.gov.uk


pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

2.0 SITE 
 
2.1 This small ancient church stands within a churchyard and occupies an 

elevated position off the south-eastern side of Whatlington Road. There is a 
cluster of dwellings close-by; however, it is a predominantly rural location with 
wide views from parts of the churchyard over open countryside.  

 
2.2 There is a wide, surfaced, pedestrian footpath which climbs up to the church 

from Whatlington Road. There is also a private track which approaches the 
church from Whatlington road and serves some adjacent properties (including 
‘The Vineyard Grange’ - the Applicant’s dwelling, and Leeford Oaks). 
Additionally, this track provides access to a small informal parking area next 
to, and used by, the church (also in separate private ownership), which has 
space for about four cars.  

 
2.3 The village hall car park is located a hundred metres or so along Whatlington 

Road to the north of the track.  
 
2.4 The applicant owns adjacent farmland (pasture) next to the churchyard. The 

application site is set within a countryside area that forms part of the High 
Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 The application is in outline but with full details of the proposed vehicular 

access to Whatlington Road subject to approval at this stage. 
 
3.2 The proposed access would be some 100m or so south of the church, close 

to the dwelling – ‘Overdale’, and would serve both the proposed new church 
car park and the new dwelling.  

 
3.3 The proposed car park (in outline) would serve the church and is shown to 

cover part of the field located behind the tree lined bank next to the road. It 
would be linked to the churchyard by a new footpath/track. The car park would 
provide 30 No. spaces and would be enclosed by a proposed post and rail 
fence and new hedge planting. 

 
3.4 The proposed dwelling and detached garage (also both in outline) would be 

set within a proposed plot measuring on average 65m deep by 40m wide. The 
supporting information provides some detail in that a two-storey house is 
proposed with a floor area of some 280sqm (3,000sqft). 

 
3.5 The supporting information states that the purpose of the detached dwelling is 

to cross-fund the construction of the car park. 
 
3.6 In addition to plans and section drawings the planning application is supported 

by a Planning Statement, a Statement of Significance & Heritage; Design and 
Access Statement, an Ecological Survey: Preliminary Bat and Barn Owl 
Ecological Appraisal, a statement from the Parish Church setting out the case 
for a car park, and a financial statement setting out the estimated value of the 
residential plot with planning permission less a breakdown of costs incurred, 
including the proposed construction of the car park, the access, fencing, 

Page 5



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

landscaping, fees and finance etc. The supporting documents can be viewed 
on the website. 

 

 
4.0 HISTORY (relevant) 
 
4.1 The land is presently part of a larger land area, which is the subject of a 

Section 106 planning obligation (or legal agreement) made between the 
applicant (landowner) and the Council in January 2001 in connection with 
planning permission RR/1999/1526/P. That planning permission was for the 
change of use and conversion of a timber framed barn to a dwelling (and an 
extension). The planning permission has been implemented. This is The 
Vineyard Grange – the Applicant’s dwelling. 

 
4.2 The Section 106 includes the requirement that the land shall only be used for 

agriculture or grazing. 
 
4.3 An application (RR/2019/699/P) to remove/discharge the Section 106 

agreement was made to the Council last year. The Planning Committee 
resolved to grant the discharge of the Section 106 application at its meeting in 
May 2019. The report to members recognised that pre-application enquiries 
(ref: PE/00178/2017 and PE/00594/2018) had been made in respect of 
residential development and a church car park on the land and it was 
accepted that any subsequent planning application for this development 
should stand alone to be considered on its individual planning merits. 

 
4.4 It is understood that the legal process in respect of the discharge of the legal 

agreement has not yet been completed and it presently remains in place. This 
should not prevent consideration of the current planning application. 

 

 
5.0 POLICIES AND LEGISLATION: 
 
5.1 The following policies of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy are relevant to      

the proposal: 
 

 PC1: Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 OSS1: Overall spatial development strategy 

 OSS2: Use of development boundaries 

 OSS3: Location of development 

 OSS4: General development considerations 

 RA2: General strategy for the countryside 

 RA3: Development in the countryside 

 CO1: Community facilities and services 

 EN1: Landscape stewardship 

 EN3: Design quality 

 EN5: Biodiversity and green space 

 TR3: Access and new development 

 TR4: Car parking 
 
5.2 The following policies of the Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 

(DaSA) are relevant to the proposal: 
 

Page 6



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

 DEN1: Maintaining landscape character 

 DEN2:The High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 DEN4: Bioiversity and green space 

 DHG3: Residential internal space standards  

 DHG4: Accessible and adaptable homes 

 DHG7: External residential areas 

 DHG11:Boundary treatments 

 DHG12: Accesses and drives 

 DIM2: Development boundaries 
 

5.3 The National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Policy 
Guidance are also material considerations. The following paragraphs of the 
National Planning Policy Framework are particularly relevant to the 
development proposal:  

 

 11: The presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38: Decision-making 

 47-48: Determining applications 

 72: The supply of new homes 

 73: Five-year supply of deliverable housing sites 

 170: The requirement to contribute to and enhance the natural local 
environment 

 172: Development in the AONB 

 189-192: Proposals affecting heritage assets 

 193-202: Considering the potential impacts of proposals affecting heritage  
 

5.4 The High Weald AONB Management Plan 2014 -2019 is also relevant to the 
consideration of the application.  

 
5.5 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 confers a statutory duty to local planning authorities when considering 
whether to grant planning permission, to have special regard to the desirability 
of preserving the listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

 

 
6.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
6.1 Highway Authority – NO OBJECTION   
 
6.1.1 No objection subject to the imposition of conditions 
 

Conclusion: It is accepted that the provision of a parking area will offer some 
highway safety benefit as visitors to the church will no longer be forced to park 
on-street and walk on the road.  

 
The proposed dwelling will generate a minor increase in traffic on the local 
network; however, this does not give me any cause for concern.  

 
The parking provision and layout for both the church and the new dwelling are 
acceptable.  

 

Page 7



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

The proposed new access is acceptable in terms of its layout and the visibility 
available at the junction with the major road. A suitable gradient into the site 
will also be provided.  

 
6.2 Historic England: GENERAL COMMENTS 

 
6.2.1 Conclusion of comments received: “we think that overall harm overall caused 

by the proposal would be less than substantial harm as set out by paragraph 
196 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This requires that the harm 
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. Whilst we 
acknowledge that there are some public benefits associated with the proposal 
in terms of the provision of the car park, your Council must be satisfied that 
these are sufficient to outweigh the harm to the designated heritage assets 
(the conservation of which should be given great weight (National Planning 
Policy Framework 193), and that these benefits could not be delivered in a 
less harmful way.” 

 
6.3  Planning Notice: 

 
6.3.1 Eight OBJECTIONS from seven addresses (summarised): 
 

 The existing car park at the village hall is more than adequate and is less 
than a 5-minute walk to the church.  

 It is also closer than the surrounding parishes’ parking areas to their 
churches. 

 There is also parking close to the church for any disabled or elderly 
person. 

 The proposed new access road would create a danger on a fast and busy 
minor road to all users. 

 The unspoilt rural view southwards from the churchyard would be ruined.  

 Contrary to Policies DEN1 and 2 – it will not maintain landscape character 
and reinforce natural and built landscape character but the reverse. 

 The path linking the car park to the church would have to be built across a 
number of graves on consecrated ground, which would almost certainly be 
disturbed. 

 Concern amongst a number of villagers that passing this application will 
create a precedent. 

 Part of the unique charm of this little Church and surroundings is its 
remoteness from noise and disturbance. 

 If the application for a house was a separate planning application, it would 
be refused 

 
6.3.2 12 SUPPORTING COMMENTS from nine addresses, comprising local 

residents and parishioners (summarised): 
 

 The Grade II* Listed church was subject to a £800k restoration after a fire; 
it has so much to offer and desperately needs safe car parking nearby. 

 This is a very generous offer at no cost to the church and should not be 
spurned. 

 Whatlington Singers rehearse in this beautiful church and also hold 
concerts. Car parking is currently a big problem. 

 Without a car park, if the existing permission allowing access is revoked 
then the church becomes marooned and it would cease to function. 

Page 8



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

 Aesthetically, it will have minimal impact on this area of the village but its 
value in ensuring the continuing viability of the church for both religious 
and secular use at the heart of the community is very great.  

6.3.3 Two GENERAL COMMENTS (summarised): 

 Much of the time the Village Hall car park remains locked, which is no use 
to occasional visitors to the Church. 

 A comment previously made that, 'views from people outside the parish 
should not be considered', was wrong; we have a number of people living 
outside the parish who contribute greatly towards the regular upkeep of 
the Church and Churchyard and regularly attend services. Many of the 
relatives who tend graves do not live in the parish. The Church is there for 
ALL people wherever they live. 

 The parking 'for disabled' near the Church is only by the goodwill and 
generosity of the landowner and cannot be relied on indefinitely. 

 If this residential development is granted it must be acknowledged as an 
exceptional circumstance in order to provide the church with a car park. 
With this in mind I strongly object to the planning statement submitted with 
the application; this should be withdrawn and replaced with a statement 
explaining that although the development breaches planning policy, this is 
an exceptional situation to enable the church to build a car park. 

6.3.4 Parish Council – SUPPORT: 
 
 “The Council support the application, but they need to be consulted on any 

future application for lighting on or around car park area. There needs to be 
planning preventive conditions for any future development or building on car 
park area. Clarification of access road onto the C.293.” 

 

 
7.0 LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
  
7.1 The proposal is for a type of development that is Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) liable. The total amount of CIL money to be received is subject to 
change, including a possible exemption and would be calculated on floor area 
when this is known at any subsequent detailed application stage. 

 

 
8.0 APPRAISAL 
 
8.1 Main issues: 
 
8.1.1 The main issues for consideration are: 
 

(i) the impact of the proposed car park and dwelling on the character and 
appearance of the High Weald AONB. 

(ii) the impact of the proposed car park and dwelling on the setting of heritage 
assets; and  

(iii) subject to the above, the planning balance; including whether a new 
dwelling in the countryside would be justified as an exception to 

Page 9



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

countryside policies as a means of securing the proposed car park for the 
church having regard to any community benefits this would achieve. 

 
Prior to considering these matters, however, the planning policy background 
is set out below. 

 
8.2 Planning policy background: 
 
8.2.1 Whatlington is not a village with an identified settlement boundary. The site is 

therefore outside any settlement development boundary identified in the 
development plan. Whatlington does not have an allocation for new housing in 
the Core Strategy and is a village where countryside planning policies apply.  

 
8.2.2 The application proposal is contrary to Core Strategy Policy OSS2, which 

advocates that development boundaries around settlements will continue to 
differentiate between areas where most forms of new development would be 
acceptable and where they would not.  

 
8.2.3 The proposal for the dwelling is not for agriculture, economic or tourism needs 

and as such it would be contrary to Policy RA2, which provides an 
overarching strategy for new development in the countryside. Furthermore, as 
the new dwelling would not be to support farming and other land-based 
industries or re-use existing agricultural buildings, it would not meet the 
criteria for development in the countryside set out by either Policy RA2 or 
RA3.  

 
8.2.4 The proposal for the new dwelling would not deliver any affordable housing 

and as such would not meet the exceptional circumstances set out in Policy 
LHN3 that allows, subject to a number of criteria, small site residential 
developments outside development boundaries in order to meet a local need 
for affordable housing in rural areas. 

 
8.2.5 With respect to the National Planning Policy Framework, the site is not set in 

an isolated location. It is located within an area where there is a small number 
of existing dwellings. As such, with regard to the National Planning Policy 
Framework paragraph 79 and the findings of the case at Braintree that is 
sometimes referred to in planning decisions, the proposal is not the 
introduction of an isolated new dwelling. 

 
8.2.6 Regarding the proposed church car park, Core Strategy Policy CO1 states 

that community facilities and services to meet identified local needs will be 
permitted in appropriate locations. In assessing such proposals, it will be 
necessary to be mindful of other development plan policies, including those 
designed to safeguard the character and appearance of the AONB 
countryside.  

 
8.2.7 Paragraphs 189–192 of the National Planning Policy Framework set out the 

Government’s policy on proposals affecting heritage assets and paragraphs 
193-202 sets out its policy on considering the potential impacts of proposals 
affecting heritage assets. 

  
8.3 The existing character and appearance of locality: 
 

Page 10



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

8.3.1 The application site forms part of an open field (agricultural grazing land). It is 
screened from the Whatlington Road by the roadside bank and tree belt. It is 
however open to views from the church and churchyard that occupy the 
higher ground to the north-east. Whatlington Road has a very rural and sylvan 
character, and the locality is one of an undulating and rolling landscape, 
comprising irregular shaped open fields separated by hedgerows and tree 
belts, interspersed with pockets of deciduous woodland. It is a countryside 
that is typical of this part of the High Weald. While there is a scattering of 
existing residential properties in the locality the overall setting of the site has a 
more natural affinity with the predominant surrounding rural landscape.  
Overall, the site lies within an attractive countryside landscape that is 
consistent with AONB designation and retains its rural character and 
appearance.  

 
8.4 The impact of the proposed car park on the character and appearance of the 

High Weald AONB. 
 
8.4.1 The scheme proposes a new access and car park to serve the church. The 

access would be provided in the western corner of the field, close to 
‘Overdale’ and almost opposite the entrance to Eastlands Farm, where the 
roadside bank is lower and minimal excavation is likely to be required. The car 
park would be positioned about 50m away from the western boundary of the 
churchyard and set within a slightly elevated part of the field in relation to the 
churchyard. A new pedestrian track would continue from the car park to the 
churchyard. Landscape impact mitigation measures would comprise 
permeable surfacing, post and rail boundary fencing, the retention of the 
roadside tree belt (other than the removal of those trees required to form the 
access), and new boundary hedge planting between the new car park and the 
rest of the open field.  

 
8.4.2 Taking the car park proposal in isolation, there would be some harm to the 

AONB landscape from the construction and use of the undeveloped land for a 
car park for up to 30 vehicles; this would be significant but not substantial. 
Importantly, however, it is acknowledged that there would be economic and 
social benefits associated with providing a car park to serve those travelling to 
the church by private car, in terms of pedestrian safety and convenience, as 
well as increasing the opportunity of being able to use the church for a greater 
range of events, including during the evenings. In the planning balance the 
benefits would outweigh the environmental harm to the AONB landscape 
arising from the construction and use of the land as a car park.  

 
8.4.3 The car park proposal cannot be viewed in isolation; however, and the 

supporting information with the application sets out that the church car park 
would only be brought forward if planning permission is also granted for a new 
dwelling. The supporting information states that the sale of the residential plot 
with planning permission would cross-subsidise the construction of the access 
and car park. 

 
8.5 The impact of the proposed new dwelling on the character and appearance of 

the High Weald AONB: 
 
8.5.1 The application relating to the proposed dwelling is in outline with details 

relating to scale, layout, external appearance, and landscaping reserved for 
subsequent reserved matters approval. However, the information with the 

Page 11



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

application indicates that a detached two-storey dwelling is proposed, and the 
floor area would amount to some 280sqm or 3000sqft. A detached garage 
building is also proposed. It is also shown that the development would stand 
within a large plot extending to about ½ acre. 

 
8.5.2 The proposal represents an intrusion of new residential development into the 

countryside. The new two-storey dwelling would be clearly visible from the 
churchyard. The proposal also involves the creation of a large residential 
curtilage. Whilst design, scale and layout are reserved it would still 
nevertheless appear as a new substantial dwelling in the countryside. It would 
contain all the trappings associated with residential development together with 
the activity associated with residential occupation of the land. Overall, the 
scheme would lead to the urbanisation of the site and the domestication of an 
essentially rural environment, harming the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the AONB countryside, to the detriment of its existing rural character and 
appearance. 

 
8.5.3 While the residential development of the greenfield site would cause 

considerable harm to the character and appearance of the AONB in the 
locality, it is also necessary to assess whether this is a suitable location for 
new residential development in terms of accessibility to services and facilities 
for future occupiers of the dwelling. In this regard Paragraph 78 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework is material. This states that to promote 
sustainable development in rural areas, housing should be located where it 
will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities, and planning 
policies should identify opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially 
where this will support local services. Whilst the site is near other buildings 
(including dwellings) it is not reasonably proximate to a town or indeed a 
village where local facilities and services are situated.   

 
8.5.4 With regard to access to local services and facilities by sustainable transport 

modes, the location of the application site is about three kilometres from the 
town of Battle. Future occupiers would have to travel in order to access any 
services. In the rural context, with limited public transport options and no 
footway, this is quite remote. As such, future occupiers of the proposed 
dwelling would probably be reliant upon the private car for their day-to-day 
needs, which is the least sustainable mode of transport. This would be 
contrary to the core principles of the National Planning Policy Framework that 
seeks to actively manage patterns of growth, minimise the need to travel 
and/or make the fullest possible use of public transport, walking and cycling, 
with the objective of supporting the transition to a low carbon future.  

 
8.6 Impact on the setting of listed buildings (heritage assets): 
 
8.6.1 The Council has a statutory duty when considering whether to grant planning 

permission, to have special regard to the desirability of preserving listed 
buildings and their setting. The National Planning Policy Framework sets out 
the Government’s policy with regards to the historic environment. It makes 
clear that harm to the significance of heritage assets can result from changes 
to their setting (paragraph 190). It highlights that great weight should be given 
to the conservation of designated heritage assets, and that the more 
important the asset the greater the weight should be given (paragraph 193). 
The National Planning Policy Framework requires that all harm to heritage 
significance should be avoided where possible or minimised, and that any 

Page 12



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

remaining harm has clear and convincing justification (paragraphs 190 and 
194). Harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset should then be 
weighed against the public benefits of a proposal in the manner set out in 
paragraph 196. 

 
8.6.2 There are a number of listed buildings in the locality; however, the two nearest 

and with potential for impact on their settings would be the church itself and 
Hollybank. 

 
8.6.3 Hollybank is located on the north western side of Whatlington Road beyond 

Eastlands Farm. There is some separation distance between it and the 
proposed new development, as well as relatively dense vegetation and 
intervening development. In the circumstances it is not considered that there 
would be any detrimental impact on setting.  

 
8.6.4 With respect to the church itself, the carpark would be some 50m across the 

open field and the proposed new dwelling would be some distance further 
away. Both developments would be viewed from the churchyard and the 
proposed car park, particularly when in use and without the newly planted 
vegetation having been established, would be viewed in the context of the 
church. Historic England’s comments on the application include the following: 

 
“We have looked at the heritage statement and the views analysis within this 
which indicates that the car park and house will be visible from the church 
where views to the south and east are more open. Currently existing built form 
within the setting of the church is not dominant but seen within the context of 
well-established vegetation and landscaping. The proposal will result in 
suburban features being more prominent in views from the church. This will 
cause some harm to the church’s significance as derived from its relatively 
unspoilt rural setting as well as to the understanding of its historic origins as 
an isolated rural church.” 

 
8.6.5 It is considered that any harm that would result to the significance of the 

church as derived from its setting would be less than substantial in National 
Planning Policy Framework terms. This is also the view of Historic England. 
When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance 
of a designated heritage asset, great weight should begiven to the asset’s 
conservation irrespective of whether any potential harm is identified as being 
less than substantial. Any harm to, or loss of significance of a designated 
heritage asset is required to have clear and convincing justification. 

 
8.6.6 Historic England’s comments also state that, ‘we would expect the Local 

Planning Authority to scrutinise the proposals to ensure that the costs of the 
car park are appropriate and best value; the house is the minimum amount of 
development required to meet these costs and causes the least harm to 
significance. It should also be explored whether there are other alternative 
ways of funding the car park, including through subsidies or grants.’ 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

9.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 
9.1. Planning Balance: 
 
9.1.1 Regarding that part of the planning application relating to the new dwelling the 

supporting information with the application argues that this is justified in view 
of the Council’s lack of a 5-year housing land supply. The Council is presently 
unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of land for housing. At April 2019 
this stood at 3.7 years. In such circumstances, the National Planning Policy 
Framework states that policies which are the most important for determining 
the application should not be considered up to date. However, paragraph 
11(d) (i) goes on to state that planning permission will be granted unless there 
are relevant policies within the Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance. Footnote 6 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
gives examples of such policies, which include those relating to AONB’s, as 
well as heritage assets.  

 
9.1.2 Paragraph 172 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out that great 

weight should be given to conserving and enhancing the landscape and 
scenic beauty of AONBs, which have the highest status of protection in 
relation to these issues. For the reasons described above there would be 
harm to the AONB as a result of the proposal. It is therefore the case that 
relevant policies within the National Planning Policy Framework indicate that 
the development should be restricted. The ‘tilted balance’ is therefore not 
engaged.  

 
9.1.3 The proposed new dwelling in a countryside location has been assessed as 

harmful to the AONB, harmful to the setting of the listed church, and not within 
a sustainable location. Accordingly, this development is contrary to the 
Council’s development plan policies. However, as part of the planning balance 
it is necessary to assess whether this identified harm is outweighed by the 
social and economic benefits of providing a car park for the church. This is a 
material consideration in determining the application, as is the viability 
exercise setting out the proposed cross-funding whereby the proceeds from 
the sale of the building plot would fund the construction of the access and the 
church car park.  

 
9.1.4 The benefits of a church car park are recognised, and these carry some 

weight in the planning balance. However, the supporting Statement with the 
application accepts that the new dwelling should not be considered ‘enabling 
development’ in the specific terms laid down by Paragraphs 79. b) and 202 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework, as the benefits of the scheme in this 
case are not directly linked with securing the future conservation of the church 
as a heritage asset. The church itself is not at risk or dilapidated (indeed it has 
gone through a renovation following the unfortunate fire a few years ago). It is 
recognised from the representations received from local residents, which are 
divided, that there are other parish churches in the District, which do not have 
a nearby car park. The benefits here are therefore that the proposal would 
improve the accessibility of the church for those travelling by private motor car 
by providing a dedicated car park that was closer than the village hall car park 
and meant that those attending by such means did not have to walk on the 
roadside verge to get from the carpark to the church path. In this regard there 
are highway safety and community benefits. 

 

Page 14



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

9.1.5 The financial viability details with the application state that the sale of the 
residential plot would net about £400,000 pounds; subtracted from this are 
various costs associated with: the planning application, fees, and taxes, and 
also construction costs; specifically,  the access (about £45,000) and the car 
park (about £204,000). This leaves a residual amount of just over £38,000, 
which is described as the balance for contingencies. While these costs are 
estimates, the supporting statement with the application states that the 
proposals for the dwelling are limited to that which is necessary to deliver the 
car park. 

 
9.1.6 With regard to the social objectives of sustainable development, the dwelling 

would provide some benefits in that it would add, to some limited extent, to 
the District’s supply of housing. Not only would this be limited, however, the 
identified social benefits would also be lessened by the fact that a large 
detached dwelling is proposed (rather than a smaller dwelling), which would 
contribute very little to meeting any identified housing needs in the rural area. 
The proposed car park would provide some social benefits for those travelling 
to the church by motor vehicle, in terms of an enhanced facility and the 
convenience that would go with this, as well as some highway safety 
improvements by reducing the need for some to walk from the village hall car 
park along-side the C293 (Whatlington Road). These social benefits are 
recognised as being significant. 

 
9.1.7 With regard to the economic benefits of sustainable development, the 

proposed dwelling and the car park would contribute during the construction 
phase. This would, however, be modest and short term. In the longer term the 
car park may add to the appeal of the church for a wider range of functions 
and activities, including in the evenings, which may have some economic 
benefits to the church. Whilst the economic benefits carry some weight, it is 
considered that this is limited weight in the planning balance. 

 
9.1.8 The proposed development would not, however, meet the environmental 

objectives of sustainable development, and would cause harm in this regard. 
The proposed car park would be quite large in relation to this small parish 
church (30 spaces) and this would result in some significant harm to the local 
AONB countryside. No information has been provided as to whether a smaller 
parking area would meet the needs of the church except to say that the 
supporting information identifies a maximum seating capacity of 120 people 
(150 for special events). This harm would however be largely off-set by the 
recognised community and highway safety benefits from the car park. With 
regard to the proposed dwelling, however the proposal would result in a large 
detached dwelling within a new and equally large, residential garden curtilage. 
This would have a considerable harmful impact on the character and 
appearance of the AONB countryside. Moreover, the location of the dwelling 
in respect to access to facilities and services would not meet the 
environmental objectives of sustainable development. 

 
9.2 Other matters: 
 
9.2.1 Biodiversity:  
 

A preliminary bat and barn owl appraisal has been submitted with the 
application. This identifies limited wildlife potential within the site, although the 
boundary hedge and tree lines would be of value to bats for commuting and 

Page 15



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

foraging activity. No further surveys are said to be required; however, some 
specific mitigation recommendations are made in the event that planning 
permission is granted for the development.  

 
9.2.2 Preapplication advice: 
 
 The applicant considers it important that Councillors be afforded the 

opportunity to consider the pre-application advice that was given before the 
application was submitted. This has been uploaded onto the application 
website as requested. However, pre-application advice, as always, is informal 
and given without prejudice - as in this case, clearly stated at the end of the 
pre-application letter. The preapplication advice in this case concluded: 

 
“The proposed access and car park are likely to be supportable at officer 
level. However, it has not been satisfactorily demonstrated that the provision 
of a dwelling, which would be contrary to planning policies, is the only way of 
financing the scheme. In addition, the size of the plot is considered to be 
excessive and would need to be reduced in size.” 

 
This does not say that the proposed dwelling would be likely to be supported 
at officer level. 

 
9.2.3 Section 106: 
 

In the event that the principle of the enabling development was supportable, a 
S106 planning obligation would be necessary to ensure that the church 
parking was provided before the construction of the dwelling. Otherwise, there 
could be no guarantee that the church car park would be delivered and not 
just the new dwelling.  

 
9.3 Conclusion: 
 
9.3.1  In the final planning balance exercise it would need to be demonstrated that 

the public benefit of securing a car park to meet any inherent needs of the 
church through enabling development, decisively outweighs the dis-benefits of 
breaching other planning policies in relation to new residential development in 
the countryside.  

 
9.3.2 In this regard, however, the harm to the environmental objectives of 

sustainable development arising from the proposed enabling development 
would be considerable and would outweigh any benefits arising from the 
proposal. 

 
9.3.3 This would be in terms of the considerable harm to the character and 

appearance of the AONB countryside landscape arising from the erection of a 
large new house set within an equally large residential curtilage on what is 
presently a green-field site (agricultural pasture) and secondly, its location in 
terms of restricted access to services and the national objective of securing a 
low carbon future. Thirdly, the development would result in suburban features 
being more prominent in views from the church, which would cause some 
harm to the church’s significance as derived from its relatively unspoilt rural 
setting as well as to the understanding of its historic origins as an isolated 
rural church. 

 

Page 16



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

 
RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE (OUTLINE PLANNING) 
 

 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL: 
 
1. The site is outside any defined development boundary and located in the 

countryside. The proposed residential development does not meet any of the 
limited circumstances listed in Policy RA3 (iii) of the Rother Local Plan Core 
Strategy under which new dwellings in the countryside may be allowed. 
Moreover, the site is not proximate to any settlement containing services and 
facilities, and its degree of accessibility to essential services and facilities by 
modes other than the private car would be significantly limited. In the 
circumstances it is not a suitable location for the proposed dwelling, having 
particular regard to accessibility for future residents to essential services and 
the need to satisfy the environmental objective of sustainable development. 
The development is contrary to Policies OSS2, OSS3, RA3 (iii) and TR3 of 
Rother Local Plan Core Strategy, Policy DIM2 of the DaSA Local Plan, and 
paragraphs 78 and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

  
2. The site lies within the High Weald AONB where Policy EN1 of the Rother 

Local Plan Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(paragraph 172) indicate that all new development will be carefully controlled 
to protect the quality of the AONB landscape. The proposed residential 
development would appear as a large new dwelling within a large residential 
curtilage together with associated paraphernalia and activity associated with 
residential use of the land. It would result in the urbanisation of the site and 
the domestication of an essentially rural environment. The proposed 
development would cause harm to the character and appearance of the High 
Weald AONB. The proposed new dwelling has been considered in the context 
of enabling development to cross-fund the construction of the church car park; 
however, the public benefit of securing a car park to meet any inherent needs 
of the church through enabling development, does not decisively outweigh the 
dis-benefits of breaching other planning policies in relation to new residential 
development in the countryside and the subsequent harm to the AONB, as 
well as resulting in some harm to the church’s significance as derived from its 
relatively unspoilt rural setting and an understanding of its historic origins as 
an isolated rural church. The proposed residential development would be 
contrary to Policies OSS4 (iii), RA2 (iii) (viii), RA3 (v), and EN1 (i) (vii) of the 
Rother Local Plan Core Strategy, Policies DEN1 and DEN2 of the DaSA Local 
Plan, and paragraphs 170, 172 (countryside) and 190, 193, 194 and 196 
(heritage assets) of the National Planning Policy Framework.   

 
NOTE:  
 
1. The refusal of planning permission relates to the following plans:  

Location plan: Drawing No. DGC21848/100 
Illustrative site plan: Drawing No. DGC21848/01 rev A (showing X section 
key) 
Illustrative site plan: Drawing No. DGC21848/01 rev B (showing highway 
access) 
Contextual topographical sections: Drawing No: DGC21848/02 rev A 
Contextual topographical sections: Drawing No: DGC21848/03 
Topographical survey: Drawing No. BES18074 Drawing No: 1 rev A  

Page 17



pl200618 – RR/2019/2758/P 

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK: In accordance with the 
requirements of the Framework (paragraph 38) and with the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, the Local 
Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application 
by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and determining the application 
within a timely manner, clearly setting out the reasons for refusal, thereby allowing 
the Applicant the opportunity to consider the harm caused and whether or not it can 
be remedied as part of a revised scheme. 
 

Page 18



pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

  

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

Rother District Council 
 

Report to   -  Planning Committee 

Date    - 18 June 2020 

Report of the  -  Executive Director 

Subject - Application RR/2020/865/P 

Address - Pooks Farm 

  London Road 

  Hurst Green 

Proposal - Variation of Condition 4 imposed on RR/2015/2683/P to 
allow use as an ancillary annexe or holiday let 

View application/correspondence 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  It be RESOLVED to GRANT (FULL PLANNING) 
DELEGATED SUBJECT TO EXPIRATION OF SITE NOTICE 
 

 
Head of Service: Tim Hickling 
 

 
Applicant:   Mr G.S. Browne 
Agent: N/A 
Case Officer: Mr M. Worsley 

(Email: matthew.worsley@rother.gov.uk) 
Parish: HURST GREEN 
Ward Members: Councillors Mrs M.L. Barnes and G.S. Browne 
 
Reason for Committee consideration: The Applicant is an elected member 
 
Statutory 8 week date: 28 June 2020 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 

 
1.1 The proposal relates to a modestly sized extension which is permitted to be 

used as an annexe.  Holiday let use is generally supported by Core Strategy 
Policy EC6 and Development and Site Allocations (DaSA) Policy DEC2. 
Given no external alterations are proposed, there would be no adverse impact 
on the AONB and vehicular access and parking arrangements would remain 
unchanged. 

 

 
2.0 PRELIMINARY MATTER 
 
2.1 In light of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, the consequent travel 

limitations and social distancing guidance from the Government, and following 
consideration of the proposed development, it is considered that this 
application could, exceptionally, be determined without the need for a site 

Page 20

http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2020/865/P
mailto:matthew.worsley@rother.gov.uk


pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

visit. In place of carrying out a site visit a detailed site assessment has been 
undertaken using GIS and aerial photography taken in May 2018, which 
shows the extension to the dwelling. The case officer also has extensive 
knowledge of the local area, having dealt with applications at the site 
previously and on nearby sites. 

 

 
3.0 SITE 
 
3.1 The application relates to a detached chalet dwelling located to the northeast 

side of the A21, around 1km north of the village of Hurst Green. It lies within 
the countryside and is within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB). 

 
3.2 The property is subject to an agricultural tie and the house serves farmland in 

the locality. 
 

 
4.0 PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 Planning permission (RR/2015/2683/P) was previously granted for an 

extension to the dwelling to provide annexe accommodation for a relative. 
Condition 4 of that permission restricted the use so that only family could 
occupy the annexe. The current proposal seeks to vary the condition so that 
the extension could be used as an annexe and a holiday let. 

 

 
5.0 HISTORY (RELEVANT) 
 
5.1 RR/2004/2102/P Erection of detached chalet bungalow (farm house) with 

provision of three parking spaces – Approved 
Conditional. 

 
5.2 RR/2015/2683/P Extension to form annexe for disabled relative – 

Approved Conditional 
 

 
6.0 POLICIES 
 
6.1 The following policies of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 are 

relevant to the proposal: 

 OSS4: (general development considerations) 

 RA3: (development in the countryside) 

 CO6: (community safety) 

 EC6: (tourism activities and facilities) 

 EN1: (landscape stewardship) 

 TR4: (car parking) 
 
6.2 The following policies of the Development and Site Allocations Local Plan are 

relevant to the proposal: 

 DHG10: (annexes) 

 DEC2: (holiday sites) 

 DEN1: (maintaining landscape character)  

Page 21

http://www.rother.gov.uk/CoreStrategy
http://www.rother.gov.uk/dasa


pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

 DEN2: (the High Weald AONB) 
 

6.3 The High Weald AONB, National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) 
and Planning Policy Guidance are also material considerations. 

 

 
7.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
7.1 Planning Notice 
 
7.1.1 Publicity currently expires on 16 June 2020. Any comments will be reported. 
 
7.2 Town/Parish Council – Any comments will be reported. 
 

 
8.0 APPRAISAL 
 
8.1 The annexe previously permitted is relatively small in scale and has been 

provided in the form of an extension to the existing dwelling. The dwelling and 
annexe share the same vehicular access, parking facilities and garden.  

 
8.2 Permitting a variation in condition to allow the annexe to be occupied as an 

annexe and holiday let would accord with Core Strategy and DaSA policies 
which are generally supportive of the economic benefits that holiday let use 
can bring. Conditions could be imposed to manage the uses proposed. In the 
case of an annexe, it should only be occupied by family members and in the 
case of a holiday let, the standard 56-day limit in any calendar year for any 
one person should be used. 

 
8.3  No external changes are proposed to the property, thus the impact on the 

AONB would be neutral. In addition, vehicular access and parking 
arrangements would remain the same.  

 

 
9.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 The proposal relates to a modestly sized extension which is permitted to be 

used as an annexe.  Holiday let use is generally supported by Core Strategy 
Policy EC6 and DaSA Policy DEC2. Given no external alterations are 
proposed, there would be no adverse impact on the AONB and access and 
parking arrangements would remain unchanged. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT (FULL PLANNING) 
 

 
CONDITIONS: 
 
Condition 4 imposed on RR/2015/2683/P is amended as follows: 
 
4.  When the extension is used as a residential annexe, it shall be used solely as 

additional accommodation for the existing dwelling ‘Pooks Field Farm’ and the 
residential annexe shall not be occupied by any person who is not a member 
of the family (as defined by section 186 of the Housing Act 1985 or in any 

Page 22



pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

provision equivalent to any re-enactment of that Act) residing in the family 
dwelling or as a separate dwelling. 

 Reason: In the interests of protecting the character of the area and to 
preclude the creation of a new dwelling in the countryside, in accordance with 
Policies OSS4 (iii), RA3 (iii) and (iv) and EN1 (i) of the Rother Local Plan and 
Policy DHG10 of the Rother District DaSA Local Plan. 

 
New conditions: 
 
5. When the extension is used as a holiday let, it shall be occupied for holiday 

purposes only and shall not be occupied as a person’s sole or main place of 
residence. 
Reason: To ensure that the approved holiday accommodation is not used for 
unauthorised permanent residential occupation in accordance with Policies 
OSS4 (iii), EC6 and RA3 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 
6. When the extension is used as a holiday let, the owners/operators shall 

maintain an up-to-date register of the names of all occupiers of the extension, 
and of their main home addresses, and shall make this information available 
at all reasonable times to the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure that the approved holiday accommodation is not used for 
unauthorised permanent residential occupation in accordance with Policies 
OSS4 (iii), EC6 and RA3 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 
7. In respect of the permitted holiday let use, the extension shall not be occupied 

for more than 56 days in total in any calendar year by any one person. 
Reason: To ensure that the approved holiday accommodation is not used for 
unauthorised permanent residential occupation in accordance with Policies 
OSS4 (iii), EC6 and RA3 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 
8. The development shall not proceed other than in accordance with Conditions 

1-3 inclusive, imposed on planning permission RR/2015/2683/P dated 11 
December 2015 which remain in full force and effect. 
Reason: This permission is granted pursuant to planning permission 
RR/2015/2683/P dated 11 December 2015. Under Section 73 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 the Council has considered the conditions 
subject to which that previous planning permission was granted and confirms 
that the conditions and associated reasons remain pertinent and are re-
imposed, apart from as varied by this permission. 

 
NOTES: 
 
1. The Applicant’s attention is drawn to the fact that the unit of accommodation 

contained within the extension permitted under reference RR/2015/2683/P will 
remain small and ancillary in form, with a shared access and garden, and will 
thus remain a single planning unit. Planning permission would be required to 
create a separate independent dwelling. 

 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK: In accordance with the 
requirements of the Framework (paragraphs 186 and 187) and with the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, the 
Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that  have been received and 

Page 23



pl200618 – RR/2020/865/P 

subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 24



pl200618 – Planning Statistics 

Rother District Council  
 
Report to  - Planning Committee  

Date  - 18 June 2020 

Report of the  - Executive Director 

Subject  - Planning Statistics for the Quarter January – March 2020 
(including summary of planning statistics for 2020/2021) 

 

 
Recommendation: It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

 
Head of Service:  Tim Hickling 
 

 
1.0 Planning Applications 
 
1.1  Total number of planning applications 

Received during the quarter: 
 

304 

2.0 Total number of planning applications 
Determined during the quarter: 
 

189 
 
 

 2.1 Percentage of applications for major 
developments issued within agreed timeframe 
 

100% 

 2.2 Percentage of applications for minor 
developments issued within agreed timeframe 
 

75% 

 2.3 Percentage of other planning  
applications issued within agreed timeframe 
 

 83% 

    
3.0 Total number of planning applications on hand 

and not yet determined: 
 

399 

 
4.0 

 
Planning Application Appeals 

  

    
4.1 Number of appeals on hand (no decision):          28 
    
4.2 Number of appeals lodged:          13 
    
4.3 Number of appeals:            Allowed:              4 
    
               Allowed in part:          0 
     
               Dismissed:              16 
 
  

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



pl200618 – Planning Statistics 

5.0 Planning Enforcement 
 
 Number of complaints received      61   
 
 Number of complaints resolved      29 
   
 Number of active complaints on hand    324  
 
 

Summary of Planning Statistics 1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020    

Planning Applications 

Applications received: 

 
 
 
Percentage of planning applications decided within agreed timeframe 
 

 
 
 

 
 

350

332

319

304

280

300

320

340

360

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Applications Received

86%
75% 75%

100%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Major applications

80% 81%
90%

75%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Minor Applications

Page 26



pl200618 – Planning Statistics 

 
 
 
Planning Appeals 
 
Appeals Lodged 
 

 
 
Appeals Decided 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Planning Enforcement Complaints 
 
Complaints received 

 

 
 

91%

84%
86%

83%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Other Applications

22
19

17

13

0

5

10

15

20

25

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Appeals Lodged

54
64 68

61

0

20

40

60

80

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Complaints Received

12

18

12
16

5

12

6 4

0

10

20

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Appeals Dismissed

Dismissed Allowed

Linear (Dismissed) Linear (Allowed)

Page 27



pl200618 – Planning Statistics 

Complaints resolved 
 

 
 
 
 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 

23

32

40

29

0

10

20

30

40

50

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Complaints Resolved

Page 28



pl200618 – Major Planning Apps 

Rother District Council   
 

Report to   - Planning Committee 

Date   - 18 June 2020 

Report of the  - Executive Director 

Subject  - Undetermined Major Planning Applications 

 

 
Recommendation: It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

 
Head of Service: Tim Hickling  
 

 
RR/2015/2264/P Michael Tyler Factory, Woodlands Way, Westfield 

Outline: Redevelopment of site to provide residential 
development comprising 40 units, landscaping and a LAP. 

 
Status: Delegated 30 May 2019 subject to Section 106 
Obligation – discussions ongoing. 

 
RR/2017/1778/P Former Thomas Peacocke School Site, Ferry Road, Rye 

Demolition of Queen Adelaide public house and erection of 63 
residential dwellings comprising 38 houses and 25 flats with 
associated landscaping, car parking and other infrastructure. 

 
Status: Delegated 14 November 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 

  
RR/2017/2452/P 11 Ellerslie Lane, Moleynes Mead, Bexhill 

Outline: Redevelopment of land with 24 No. unit residential 
development including new access road, associated parking and 
external amenity areas. 

 
Status: Delegated 14 April 2018 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 

 
RR/2017/382/P Hodson's Mill, Northbridge Street, Salehurst/Robertsbridge 

Erection of 96 No. residential dwellings (Use Class C3), non- 
residential floorspace comprising 280sqm (Use Class A3) and 
920sqm (Use Class B1), and associated access, car/cycle 
parking, open amenity space, strategic landscaping and green 
infrastructure and including restoration works to the Mill Building 
and Oast House. 

 
Status: Delegated 18 April 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 
 

RR/2017/457/P Former Market Garden, Lower Waites Lane, Fairlight 
Construction of 16 houses together with associated parking, 
access and wildlife area. 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 12



pl200618 – Major Planning Apps 

Status: Delegated 5 March 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 

 
RR/2018/3064/P Churchill Farm, The Street, Sedlescombe 

Outline: Erection of ten dwellings, new access and access road 
and relocation of the 30mph speed limit. 

 
Status: Application has been amended and re-advertised. 

 
RR/2018/3099/P Lydd Ranges Sea Defences, Lydd Road - East of, Jurys Gap, 

Camber 
Improvement of flood defences including construction of new 
timber groyne field, recharge of beach, strengthening of the 
'Green Wall' and relocation of Denge Marsh outfall. 

 
Status: Under consideration - co-operating with Folkestone and 
Hythe District Council and the Environment Agency. 

 
RR/2019/1659/P PGL Pestalozzi, Ladybird Lane, Sedlescombe 

Proposed kitchen extension to conference centre, extension to 
existing accommodation block, new accommodation blocks, 
tenting area, relocate and reduce approved car park, site access 
improvements and new coach passing places, outdoor activities 
structures, new activity pond, living acoustic fencing and 
parkland tree planting at residential training and education 
centre (in substitution for remainder of extant planning 
permission RR/2007/397/P). 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/1841/P Old Mears, Harbour Road, Icklesham 

Erection of industrial unit with offices and staff facilities. 
Formation of new vehicular access. 
 
Status: Under consideration.  Seeking to resolve highway 
issues. 

 
RR/2019/2194/P Foundry Close – Land East, Foundry Close, Hurst Green 

Residential development of 20 houses, associated parking and 
landscaping on vacant land. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/2242/P Barnhorn Green, Bexhill 

Amendments to five areas of the approved scheme 
RR/2015/3115/P resulting in revised mix and quantum of 
dwellings increasing from 67 to 83 units including 30% 
affordable. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/2289/P 92 London Road, The Sussex Hotel, Bexhill 

Proposed extension and change of use of hotel/public house to 
form offices at ground floor and 10 No. self-contained flats at 

Page 30



pl200618 – Major Planning Apps 

first and second floor. 
 

Status: Under consideration.  Currently subject to negotiation 
with the Applicant – reduction in the rear extension, allowing the 
creation of a larger area of amenity space.  Strengthened 
marketing and financial viability evidence still under preparation. 

 
RR/2019/2302/P 28-34 Western Road, Bexhill Indoor Market, Bexhill 

Change of use of first floors to 7 No. 1 bed flats, and the 
erection of an extension upwards to the rear and into the loft 
space including rear facing dormer creating additional 4 No. 1 
bedroom and 1 No. 2 bedroom flats. All ground floor retail units, 
indoor market and arcade to be retained. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/243/P Main Road – Land off, Icklesham 

Erection of 15 local needs affordable dwellings. 
 

Status: Delegated 4 June 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 

 
RR/2019/2738/P The Paddock, Northiam 

Construction of 35 No. dwellings with access, landscaping, 
private and community amenity space and parking. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/2818/P Hillbury Field, High Street, Ticehurst 

Approval of reserved matters relating to appearance and 
landscaping pursuant to outline permission RR/2019/2198/P for 
the erection of 30 dwellings. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2019/2850/P Churchfields Industrial Estate, Harbour Road, Icklesham 

Construction of 12 industrial units (Use Class B1c, B2 and B8) 
totaling 4,238sqm GEA.  A new access off Harbour Road, 
associated parking and landscaping. 

 
Status: Under consideration.  Seeking to resolve highway 
issues. 

 
RR/2019/430/P Bexhill Leisure Centre, Down Road, Bexhill 

Outline: Mixed use development comprising a leisure centre (D2 
Use), ancillary car parking and up to 52 dwellings (C3 Use) 
including matters of access with all other matters reserved. 

 
Status: Delegated 17 December 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation. 

 
RR/2019/604/P Blackfriars – Land at, Battle 

Outline: Detailed proposals for a spine road to serve residential 
development, with vehicular access off Harrier Lane and The 

Page 31



pl200618 – Major Planning Apps 

Spinney, with Master Plan for up to 220 dwellings and 
associated works. 

 
Status: Delegated 14 October 2019 – subject to Section 106 
Obligation 

 
RR/2020/151/P Pett Level Road – Land South of, Fairlight Cove, Fairlight 

Outline: Development of up to 48 residential units (including 
40% affordable), including new vehicular access from Pett Level 
Road and serviced plot for a Doctor’s Surgery. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2020/454/P 61 and 63 North Trade Road, Battle 

Variation of Condition 2 imposed on planning permission 
RR/2019/1597/P to allow changes to dayrooms window and 
door styles; changes to location of dining room and terrace; 
internal revisions and amendments to Eastern roofscape. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
RR/2020/565/P 11 Ellerslie Lane, Moleynes Mead – Land at, Bexhill 

Redevelopment of land to provide 28 dwellings (6 x 4-bed 2 
storey homes, 15 x 3-bed 2 storey homes, 4 x 2-bed 2 storey 
homes, 1 x 3-bed 1 storey home, 1 x 2-bed maisonette, 1 x 1-
bed maisonette) and associated new access roads, parking and 
external amenity areas. 

 
Status: Under consideration. 

 
 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director 

Page 32



pl200618 - Appeals 

Rother District Council   
 

Report to   - Planning Committee 

Date   - 18 June 2020 

Report of the  - Executive Director 

Subject  - Appeals 

 

 
Recommendation: It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

 
Head of Service: Tim Hickling  
 

 
APPEALS LODGED 
 
RR/2019/1565/P BATTLE: High Views – Land Adjoining, Loose Farm Lane,  
(Delegation) Battle 

Change of use of existing agricultural land, for stationing of 
two mobile homes for residential purposes by gypsy family 
members, together with provision of communal utility/day-
room.  Extended family members linked to adjoining High 
Views approved gypsy site. 
Ms A. Searle 

 
RR/2019/2126/P BATTLE: Hughs’ Field, Land opposite Caldbec House,  
(Delegation) Caldbec Hill, Battle 

Residential development of 5 No. dwellings served by 
upgraded existing field access, together with erection of 
tractor shed and stable building. 
Mr N. Whistler 

 
RR/2019/2380/P BATTLE: 41 North Trade Road, Oast House, Lower Almonry,  
(Delegation) Farm, Battle 

Conversion of historic agricultural building to residential use 
with extension including basement and lightwells. 
Mr and Mrs Roger and Karen Soan 

 
RR/2019/2419/P BEXHILL: 1 Danecourt Close, Bexhill 
(Non-determination) Demolition of garage.  Erection of bungalow with access 

from Woodgate Park and new off-road area for existing 
dwelling with access from Danecourt Close. 
Mr and Mrs J. Usherwood 

 
RR/2019/581/P BEXHILL: 128 Dorset Road, Lindsay Hall, Bexhill  
(Delegation) Erection of 3 No. dwellings together with access drive and 

parking spaces to rear garden with access via Tiverton Drive 
Complete Building Design 

 
RR/2019/2193/P BURWASH: British Red Cross Society Centre, Highfields, 
(Delegation) Burwash 

Removal of an old timber structure and replacement with two 

Page 33

Agenda Item 13



pl200618 - Appeals 

semi-detached small dwellings. 
Matrix Claim Services 

 
RR/2019/2525/P MOUNTFIELD: Park Pale Meadow, Mountfield Lane, 
(Committee - Mountfield 
Reversal) Removal of Conditions 6 and 7 imposed on 

RR/2019/1370/P. 
Ms Sam Swift 

 
RR/2019/2853/P NORTHIAM: Cartref, Dixter Lane, Northiam, 
(Delegation) Erection of a wooden motorbike garage. 

Mrs Lisa Hooper 
 
RR/2019/2578/P RYE: 149 Pottingfield Road, Rye 
(Delegation) Demolition of existing attached garage to be replaced with a 

self-contained end of terrace 2 bed family dwelling house 
and alteration of host dwelling to change it to a 3 bed mid 
terraced house. 
Mrs Sharon Gonza and Mr T. Peters 

 
RR/2019/306/P SEDLESCOMBE: The Oast, Battle Barn Farm, New Road, 
(Delegation) Sedlescombe 

Reinstatement of cast roundel including conical roof and 
cowl.  Replacement of concrete tiled roof with clay tiles.  
Demolition of existing conservatory, erection of new 
orangery and ground floor bedroom.  Cladding of first floor of 
main building. 
Mr Michael Ashenheim 

 
 
APPEALS STARTED 
 
RR/2020/3/P PEASMARSH: Lyndhurst, Main Street, Peasmarsh, 
(Delegation) Removal of Conditions 6 and 7 and variation of Conditions 3, 

4 and 5 imposed on planning permission RR/2017/1843/P to 
allow use of holiday let cottage as separate residential 
dwelling. 
Mr Terry Denman 

 
 
APPEALS ALLOWED 
 
RR/2018/2616/L NORTHIAM: Clench Green, Beales Lane, Northiam 
(Committee -  Proposed extension and alterations. 
as report) Ms P. Harris 
 
RR/2018/2617/L NORTHIAM: Clench Green, Beales Lane, Northiam 
(Committee -  Proposed extension and alterations. 
as report) Ms P. Harris 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



pl200618 - Appeals 

APPEALS DISMISSED 
 
NONE 
 
 
APPEALS WITHDRAWN 
 
NONE 
 
 
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES 
 
NONE 

 
 
Dr Anthony Leonard 
Executive Director  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Planning Applications - Index
	9 RR/2019/2758/P - Whatlington - St. Mary Magdalen Church - Land South West of
	10 RR/2020/865/P - Hurst Green - Pooks Farm, London Road
	11 Planning Statistics for the Quarter January - March 2020 (including Summary of Planning Statistics for 2020/21)
	12 Undetermined Major Planning Applications
	13 Appeals

